HIGHLIGHTS FROM RECENT BACK NUMBERS OF FLYING SAUCER REVIEW...

1981

Volume 27, No. 5

DR. FELIX ZIGEL’ AND THE DEVELOPMENT
OF UFOLOGY IN RUSSIA — Partlll :
Gordon Creighton (Pts | & Il in Vol. 27, Nos 3/4)

Volume 27, No. 4

COMMERCIAL JET CREW SIGHTS
UNIDENTIFIED OBJECT — Part 1
(Part 2 in Vol. 27/5). Dr. R. F. Haines

Volume 27, No. 3
CE3 REPORT FROM FINLAND
J. Kyrolainen & P. Teerikorpi

Volume 27, No. 2
A POLICEMAN'S LOT
Jenny Randles

Volume 27, No. 1
UFOLOGY IN THE U.S.S.R.
Nikita A. Schnee

1980

Volume 26, No. 6

CONTACT NEAR PYROGOVSKOYE LAKE
Nikita A. Schnee (CE3in U.S.S.R.)

Volume 26, No. 5
DID FLYING SAUCERS LAND AT BROADLANDS?
(The Mountbatten residence). Desmond Leslie

Volume 26, No. 4
DIONISIO LLANCA AND THE UFONAUTS
Gordon Creighton & Charles Bowen

Volume 26, No. 3
FOUR YOUNG MEN AND A UFO

Alleged cow-poaching incident
J. Randles & P. Whetnall

Volume 26, No. 2
SEVEN UFOs SEEN FROM B-36 BOMBER
Dr. Richard F. Haines

Volume 26, No. 1

A RE-VIEWING OF THE GREAT
NOCTURNAL LIGHT

W. C. Chalker

1979

Volume 25, No. 6

PHYSICAL ASSAULT BY UNIDENTIFIED
OBJECTS AT LIVINGSTON

(Also in Vol. 26, No. 1) M. Keatman & A. Collins

Volume 25, No. 5
THE “CAT-FLAP" EFFECT
Aimé Michel

Volume 25, No. 4
RETRIEVALS OF THE THIRD KIND
(Also in Vol. 25, 5 & 6) Leonard H. Stringfield

Volume 25, No. 3
THE SUNDERLAND FAMILY ENCOUNTERS
J.Randles & P. Whetnall

Yolume 25, No. 2
THE TOURIST THEORY, or. .
R.DelLillo & R. H. Marx.

Volume 25, No. 1
THIRTY YEARS AFTER KENNETH ARNOLD: a
summing up...Dr. Pierre Guérin

.why they are here.

PRICE

£1.00

£1.00

£1.00

£1.00

1978 PRICE

Volume 24, No. 6

UFOs DEBATED AT THE UNITED NATIONS
Charles Bowen

(Also report on the House of Lords debate)

Volume 24, No. 5
THE MISSING CESSNA AND THE UFO
W. C. Chalker

Volume 24, No. 4
LANDING AT UZES FRANCE
Charles Gouiran et al

Volume 24, No. 3

LANDING IN YUGOSLAVIA

Milos Krmelj

Volume 24, No. 2

THE UFONAUT'S PLEA FOR WATER
Juan J. Benitez

Volume 24, No. 1
BENT SPOONS, OR BENT REALITY?
Philip Creighton

1977

Volume 23, No. 6
STACK ROCKS HUMANOID DISPLAY
Randall Jones Pugh

Volume 23, No. 5
ENCOUNTER AT TALAVERA
Juan J. Benitez

Volume 23, No. 4
THE MAN-IN-BLACK SYNDROME
(Also in Vol. 23, 5/6) Dr. B. E. Schwarz

Volume 23, No. 3

CANARY ISLANDS LANDING &
OCCUPANTS REPORTED

J. M. Sanchez

Volume 23, No. 2
FRIGHTENING CAR STOP NEAR NELSON
T. Grimshaw & J. Randles

Volume 23, No. 1

BROADHAVEN SCHOOL REPORT
Randall Jones Pugh

1976

Volume 22, No. 6
SWEDISH SCIENTIST'S UNIQUE UFO PICTURES
Sven-Olof Fredickson

Volume 22, No. 5

UFO & SILVER-SUITED ENTITY
SEEN NEAR WINCHESTER
Leslie Harris

Volume 22, No. 4
UFO-HELICOPTER CLOSE ENCOUNTER OVER OHIO
Jennie Zeidman

1976 Vol. 22, Nos. 3, 2, 1
1975 Volume 21, Nos 3 & 4 (Double issue, 64 pages)
1975 Vol. 21, No. 6
1974 Vol. 20, No. 5
1973 Vol. 19, Nos. 3,2,1
1972 Vol. 18, Nos. 5,3,2
1971 Vol. 17, No. 2

£1.50

£1.50
each £1.50 -
£2.20
£1.75
£2.00
each £2.00
each £2.00

£2.00

US dollar rates: $2.00 (£1), $2.50 (£1.25), $3.00 (£1.50) $3.50 (£1.75), $4.00 (£2), $4.40 (£2.20)
Remittance with order to: FSR Publications Ltd., (Back Issues), West Malling, Maidstone, Kent ME19 6JZ, England.
An element to cover bank exchange charges is included in these conversions.

Published by FSR Publications Ltd., West Malling, Maidstone, Kent, England, and printed in Great Britain by
OPTICHROME Ltd., Maybury Road, Woking, Surrey, England.



Compendium Books

Books of interest to readers of FSA.

ALIEN CONTACT J. Randles & P. Whetnall

£5.25

THE ENCYCLOPEDIA OF UFOs R. D. Story

£12.95

THE TUJUNGA CANYON CONTACTS
Ann Druffel and D. Scott Rogo £8.20

Dr. Richard F. Haines
Paperback £6.95

OBSERVING UFOs

MESSENGERS OF DECEPTION Dr. J. F. Vallée

Paperback £3.95

B. L. Cathie & P. N. Temm
Paperback £3.50

HARMONIC 695
The UFO and anti-gravity

Many other titles in stock: UFOs, Forteana, Comparative
religion, parapsychology, etc.

Postage & packing 20% extra, minimum 40p
Please let us know if you would like to be added to our

mailing list.
Compendium Books Telephones:
234 Camden High Street 01-485 8944

LONDON NW1 ENGLAND 01-267 1525

A DOUBLE VALUE
ISSUE OF FSR...

The “Double Issue’ Vol. 21, Nos. 3/4 of 1975,
64 pages + covers, fully illustrated. Here are
some of its contents...

Editorial on the Adamski/Bottle cooler farce
The Carl Higdon case Dr. Leo Sprinkle

Basic Patterns in UFO observations

Dr. Claude Poher & Dr. Jacques Vallée
The car that turned transparent Gordon Creighton

Anthropomorphic phenomena of Santa Isabel
Oscar A. Galindez

New Berlin UFO Landing and repair Or. Berthold E. Schwarz
Bangkok UFO photos Donald A. Johnston

Bebedouro Il: the little men return for the soldier
Hulvio B. Aleixo

The case of the ""Green Men'" (Argentine abduction case)
Pedro Romaniuk

Jerome Clark
Wido Hoville

lowa’'s Bashful Humanoid
The Army and EM effects

FSR Publications Ltd.
(back numbers),

West Malling, Maidstone,
Kent ME19 6JZ, England.

Still on offer
at £2.20 (US$4.40)

FLYING SAUCER REVIEW

Annual subscriptions: UK and Overseas: £6.90, USA $13.80 (bank exchange commission
on personal cheques in US dollars drawn on banks in the USA is covered by this amount).

Single coples: £1.15 (US$2.30)

OVERSEAS SUBSCRIBERS ARE RECOMMENDED TO REMIT IN £ STERLING BY

INTERNATIONAL (OR BANKERS’) MONEY ORDER.

IMPORTANT NOTICE: Subscribers in the Republic of Ireland and In Canada are requested
to remit the sterling amount by International Money Order, or by Giro (FSR) Publications
Ltd., Giro No. 356 3251) and NOT by personal cheques drawn in sterling (unless these are
drawn on a bank in the United Kingdom), or drawn in US dollars (unless these are drawn

on a bank in the United States of America).

Airmail extra: for USA, South Africa, Argentina, Brazil £4.74 (US$9.50) Australia, New Zealand

etc., £5.34; Middle East £3.90, all annually.

Overseas subscribers should remit by bank draft or personal cheque drawn on a bank in
the United Kingdom, by personal cheque in US dollars drawn on banks in the USA only, or
by international Money Order in Sterling (our preference). If remitting by Giro then FSR's

account number is 356 3251.

All mail, editorial matter and subscriptions should be addressed to:
The Editor, FSR Publications Ltd., West Malling, Maidstone, Kent ME 19 6JZ, England (Tel:

01-639 0784).

Remittances should be made payable to "FSR Publications Ltd.”

Artwork: Terence Collins




FLYING
SAUCER
REVIEW

I Volume 27, No. 6 115p

THE RENDLESHAM
FOREST MYSTERY See page 4



FLYING
SAUCER
REVIEVWW

Volume 27, No. 6
(published June 1982)

CONTENTS

The B.O.A.C. Labrador
sighting of 1954

James Howard......... 2
The Rendlesham Forest
Mystery

Jenny Randles .. ....... 4

Soviet “UFOs" Identified as
Satellite launchings

Pekka Teerikorpi ... .. .. 9
More on the Azores Landing
of September 1954

Gordon Creighton . . . .. 11
The UFO Phenomenon:
Laugh, Laugh, Study, Study

J. AllenHynek ........ 13
The Encounter at Turis
Gordon Creighton . . . .. 17

A 1949 Brazilian Contactee —
Part 2

Richard W. Heiden .... 19
FSR Bookshelf — 14

Janet & Colin Bord .. .. 21
MailBag ............... 28

World Round-up ......... iii

© Flying Saucer Review

Library of Congress
copyright FSR Publications
Limited 1981

Contributions
appearing in this
magazine do not
necessarily reflect its
policy and are
published without
prejudice

For subscription

details and address
please see foot of
page ii of cover

Editor- CHARLES BOWEN

Consultants

GORDON CREIGHTON, MA, FRAI, FRGS, FRAS

C. MAXWELL CADE, AlnstP, FRAS, AFRAeS, CEng, FIEE, FIERE

BERNARD E. FINCH, MRCS, LRCP, DCh, FBIS

R. H. B. WINDER, BSc, CEng, FIMech E JONATHAN M. CAPLAN, MA

I. GRATTAN-GUINESS, MA, MSc, PhD, DSc PERCY HENNELL, FIBP

JANET BORD, COLIN BORD

Overseas J. ALLEN HYNEK, PhD, AIME MICHEL, BERTHOLD E. SCHWARZ, MD
Secretarial Assistant JENNY RANDLES

An international journal devoted to the study of Unidentified IEIying Objects

A RECORD PUT STRAIGHT

UR reader H. S. Taylor performed a very worthwhile task by raising a

query about some of the details given in our Editorial leader relating
to the classic sighting by BOAC Stratocruiser skipper Captain James How-
ard, his crew, and many passengers over Labrador on June 29, 1954. His
letter prompted us to trace Captain Howard and, thankfully, to obtain a re-
port from him — as far as he recalls — of the event. We are grateful to him
for his help, and his report appears as a short article on page 2. Thus, we
hope, is the record put straight.

Before proceeding we must point out that the Labrador story was chosen
because, as we knew it, it was a remarkable multi-percipient/
radar-visual case, with witnesses of the highest integrity. It thus served to
illustrate the point we wished to make in the Volume 27, No. 3 Editorial,
that the prime witness was hardly likely to conjure up figments of his im-
agination and project them in such a way that Traffic Control could trace
them miles ahead of the aircraft; again in such a way that his co-pilot, navi-
gator, cabin staff and passengers could see them in their flight path four
miles on the port side of the aircraft. The correct version of this case is still
an admirable illustration to the point we wished to make.

We now know we had the distance wrong between the locality where
Captain Howard was ordered to “hold”, and the point where he first saw
the objects. Furthermore, we see that we had a very wrong impression re-
garding the responses on the Sabre’s nose radar in that only the Strato-
cruiser’s trace was recorded. We also had the cloud formations not quite

right. It can only be suggested that your Editor’s memory of what Captain
Howard told him and his friends and colleagues in 1965 is none too good.
The occasion of the meeting was a private dinner at which the pilot was the
guest, and as he was still flying at the time, and therefore under official con-
straint, we respected his position and refrained from recording what he had
to say.

The BOAC Stratocruiser case is a classic, but it also held our interest be-
cause it featured in our very first issue in 1955, Volume 1, No. 1 — which
was well before your present Editor’s association with Flying Saucer Review
had begun. Unfortunately the author of the item, Leonard Cramp, gave
only a sparse account of the event, and conccmralcd thereafter on Captain
Howard’s knee- pad sketches of the shape-changing object and its attendant
small “saucers” (Cramp’s description), and on his (Cramp’s) speculations
and interpretation of the phenomenon.

So your Editor regrets the misinformation he unwittingly fed into his
Editorial leader of FSR Volume 27, No. 3. However, he would like to ask
readers to recall one point he made in that leader: “We knew about this
case for the simple reason that it avoided the official clamp-down because
the many passengers who saw the UFOs were not bound by the restric-



tions.” We should not overlook the fact, therefore, that
the pilot of the F-94 and his companion were bound
hand and foot by the official constraints that followed
the sitting, and deliberations, of the Robertson Com-
mission of January 1953. So it is conceivable that even
if they had had the images of the UFOs on their radar
scope, they would in no way have made that infor-
mation public.

The official constraint is a very real thing as far as
both civil and military pilots are concerned. Your Edi-
tor has given talks to womens’ clubs where the mem-

bers’ husbands have come along as guests — very
knowledgeable husbands who have taken the speaker
aside after the talk and have confided over a beer that
they were airline pilots, that they were with him
100% but would go in fear of their jobs if they spoke
about their experiences.

To conclude, the New England-Labrador BOAC in-
cident should, we feel, still go on record — in view of
the “hold” instruction from Boston Traffic Control —
as a multi-witness/probable radar case.

THE B.O.A.C. LABRADOR

SIGHTING OF 1954

The pilot recalls the remarkable events of 28 years ago!

James Howard

was in command of BOAC Stratocruiser G-ALSC,

operating flight No. 510-196 from New York to
London, on June 29, 1954. I had elected to make a
refuelling stop at Goose Bay, Labrador — a routine
procedure.

We departed New York at 2103 GMT (5.03p.m.
Eastern Daylight Time). About 30 mins later, when
nearing the boundary between New York Air Traffic
Centre and Boston Air Traffic Centre, Boston told me
to hold at a position somewhere near the coast of
Rhode Island (I've forgotten the exact place). No rea-
son given, but I assumed that there was conflicting
traffic ahead. I might say that it was, and is, very un-
usual to be “held” when outbound from a busy area.

After perhaps 10-12 minutes I pointed out to Bos-
ton that my fuel reserves were not limitless, and re-
quested onward clearance. Control then said that I
could proceed if I would accept a detour via Cape
Cod, rejoining the original track well north of Boston.
I accepted this and we proceeded on our way.

About 3 hours later we were crossing the St Law-
rence estuary near Seven Islands, Quebec. We were
flying at 19,000ft, above broken cloud at possibly
14,000ft., with the coastline clearly visible through
gaps in the cloud.

I then saw these objects for the first time. They
were moving at about the same speed as we were (230
knots approx) on a parallel course, maybe 3 or 4 miles
to the north west of us (we were heading N.E.). They
were below the cloud at this time, at a guess at 8,000ft.
Soon after crossing the coast into Labrador, the cloud
layer was left behind and the objects were now clearly
in view, seeming to have climbed more nearly to our
altitude. At this time the sun was low to the north-

Our reader H. S. Taylor (see “Mail Bag”) draws
our attention to discrepancies between the de-
tails of the famous 1954 incident, given in our
editorial leader in Volume 27, No. 3, and a ver-
sion published in Fate magazine “a few months
after the incident.” We have been fortunate
enough to locate Captain Howard — now re-
tired — and he, having read Mr. Taylor’s letter
has recorded for us the details, as he recalls
them, of the event of more than a quarter of a
century ago. Readers should also refer to our
editorial leader on page 1 of this issue. EDITOR

west, sky clear, visibility unlimited. There was a small
amount of low cloud, near the ground

The crew and I had ample time to study and sketch
these “things” as they flew with us for some 20 mi-
nutes in all. The passengers, I found out later, had also
seen them and were staring out of the windows on the
port side.

There was one large object and six small globular
things. The small ones were strung out in a line, some-
times 3 ahead and 3 behind the large one, sometimes
2 ahead and 4 behind, and so on, but always at the
same level. The large object was continually, slowly,
changing shape, in the way that a swarm of bees
might alter its appearance. They appeared to be
opaque and hard-edged, grey in colour, no lights or
flames visible.

After watching these things for 10 minutes or so |
judged that we were now within VHF radio range of
Goose Bay, and could talk to them. I asked Lee Boyd,
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Figure 1 Figure 2

Some aspects of Captain Howard’s sketches of the shape-changing object, and its “attendants”, as drawn by
Leonard Cramp for FSR Volume 1, No. 1 (Spring 1955).

my co-pilot, to ask Goose Bay for information. They
asked us to describe what we were seeing, and told us
that they had an F.94 on patrol and would vector him
towards us. (The F94 was a radar equipped two seat
fighter). A little later Goose Bay asked us to change
frequency and talk direct to the fighter. On doing so
we learned that he had us in radar contact — no men-
tion of anything else visible. I gave him a bearing of
the objects from us, and as I did so I noticed that the
small objects had disappeared. (My Navigator who
was watching them closely at this time said that they
appeared to converge on, and enter, the large one).

At about this time the sun set in the north-west.

As the fighter approached, the large object dwin-
dled in size, still on the same relative bearing from us,
and after a few more seconds, disappeared.

[ then had to start the descent into Goose Bay
where we landed at 0145 GMT.

We were questioned at length by USAF Intelli-
gence at Goose Bay (who, incidentally, seemed totally
unsurprised at the sighting — they lold us there had
been several others in the Labrador area recently).

We left Goose Bay at 0314 GMT for London, arriv-
ing at 1227 on the 30th.

On this leg I wrote the voyage report. At that time I
did not connect the unusual “hold” in the Boston area
with the sighting because of the discrepancy in time
and distance. It was only after receiving many letters
about the sighting — including one from a doctor and
his wife who were on holiday in Massachusetts, and
saw a number of objects flying overhead in a North-
Easterly direction at about the time that we were be-

ing held — that a possible connection became
evident.
(Incidentally — the sketches that the doctor made

were very similar to those that I made.)

Referring to Mr Taylor’s letter again, regarding
radar. At that time Goose Bay had only short-range
airfield control radar; we were too far away to be de-
tected by that. The F94 did not report having sighted

the objects on his radar equipment. We had left Goose
Bay for London before the fighter returned so I had
no opportunity to question the F94 crew.

If the ‘hold’ was because of unidentified traffic in
the Boston control area, then that would imply radar
contact.

KEY:
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Figure 3: Captain Howard’s flight path, shcwing
projected route, holding area, diversion and the UFQO’s
approximate route.



THE RENDLESHAM FOREST MYSTERY

Jenny Randles

The case reported herein was first alluded to by the author in a “late item” which found its way into Volume 26,
No. 6 of Flying Saucer Review (page iii of cover) and fuller details were promised in due course. Here then are

those details.

HEN reading the works of Leonard Stringfield,

for example “Retrievals of the Third Kind” in
FSR Volume 25, Numbers, 4, 5 and 6, and of Charles
Berlitz, The Roswell Incident (Granada paperback
1982), one wonders why the alleged UFO crashes al-
ways occur in America, and always in deserts. Why,
indeed, have they never occurred in more recent ye-
ars. One is forced to conclude that we would never get
such a tale in dear old conservative Britain. Or would
we?

Where there’s smoke there’s fire — or more smoke!

In February 1981 I received a phone-call from East
Anglian author Paul Begg. Paul, best known for his
Thin Air book (a praiseworthy sceptical examination
of mysterious vanishings), looks for answers, not spec-
ulations. So what he had to tell me sounded worth
checking out.

It seems that Paul and his wife had met a man in
their local village pub who was slightly known to
them, and presumably knew of Paul’s interests. He de-
cided to relate an episode which, he said, had oc-
curred a few weeks previously (we think on Tuesday,
December 30, 1980). According to him, the civil radar
establishment where he worked had on that day
tracked a UFO. It was night, and their base (one of
many such systems that litter the strategic East Ang-
lian region) had recorded this unusual target heading
towards Suffolk and the general region to the east of
Ipswich. This man had not been on duty when the in-
cident had happened, but his friend had, and he had
got the story from him. Allegedly the target was re-
ported to other radar systems on the south east coast
(both civil and military) and was checked against all
known air movements. It was uncorrelated. This was
the only part their station played in the affair (al-
though they knew other places had recorded it too).
But they were left in doubt about the status of the in-
cident when the US Air Force came along a couple of
days later and took away the tapes of the radar track-
ings of this UFO.

Being in a sensitive area viz-a-viz the Official Sec-
rets Act readers will appreciate we cannot name this
“witness.” But he did agree to talk to us, and, thanks to
Paul, UFOIN members Kevin McClure (a specialist in
sorting out rumours) and Peter Warrington (our most
experienced radar case investigator) checked with

him. The story, as verifiable as it can be, was as I have
given. One rider added was that they were led to be-
lieve, by the USAF people who collected the tapes,
that the “anomaly” had landed not far from Wood-
bridge Air Force Base (indeed it was suggested even
on the base), and that a metallic craft, plus entities,
was encountered. Electromagnetic effects on a military
jeep which approached the site were also claimed.

So, we had ourselves a rumour of an extraordinary
story, but little more than that. Merely anecdotal, “a
friend of a friend told me” type stuff, from which one
can hardly build mountains. Was there smoke behind
the smoke, or a glimmering of a real fire? All we knew
was that the radar man seemed to be telling the truth,
and had no obvious reason to lie about this. Then
came news which changed everything.

The wonder of Woodbridge

Norman Oliver was at that time (February 1981)
still editor of BUFORA Journal. As such he picked up
stories from all over the world. One day, about this
time, he received a half-garbled account from the USA
that “something big” had happened at Woodbridge
around the turn of the year. The gist of the rumour
was the same. The difference was that this came from
a US serviceman now back in the States who, possibly,
thus felt more free to talk.

This was all rather interesting, but not half as inter-
esting as what was going on, unbeknownst to the rest
of us, in rural Suffolk itself. When I called Bob Easton
(the nearest UFOIN member to the Woodbridge base
.. . though still many miles away in Essex) I intended
to tell him of the story, but he told me of the Norman
Oliver aspect, and that local BUFORA investigators
were on to it as well, and finding things out!

These local investigators were Brenda Butler —
who was closest, in Leiston, about 10 miles north of
the area in question — and her friend Dot Street,
based twenty miles further north in Lowestoft. The
two young women covered a vast, mostly rural area,
more or less on their own. Suffolk is such a low-den-
sity population region that it has never generated
many investigators, although it certainly has gen-
erated some intriguing UFO sightings (underlining
the well-attested rule that interesting close encounters
are in inverse proportion to the population density).
One recalls the classic radar/visual case of August



1956 (usually known as the Lakenheath case, since
most of the multiple ground and air sightings and
radar trackings involved that base, although Bentwa-
ters USAF base was initially involved too, and Bent-
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Location in East Anglia of Rendlesham Forest.

waters, whilst a USAF-leased base, is alongside Wood-
bridge, the subject of our 1980 case). This Lakenheath
R/V is still regarded as one of the two or three best
cases in UFO history. It has defied attempts to solve it
and really must have set our Ministry of Defence
thinking very seriously about UFOs — if they were
not already so doing. Indeed many internal sources
have told me that is so.
Dot and Brenda had picked up the story on their
own initiative, and were chasing it with some haste, as
.indeed they are still doing in 1982). This sudden inde-
pendent coming-together of three closely linked ru-
mours, made us think very carefully that something
might really be behind them all. Yet, despite the in-
credible nature of the information emerging, the me-
dia were not latching on to it. This seemed, and still
seems, baffling. It is the kind of story any local news-
paper would surely fight for. But aside from a local
BBC interview which Brenda did in Autumn 1981 —
which was not picked up nationally — and a London
Standard reference to the case in May, there has not
been any effort by the media to crack open this affair.
The London Standard piece emerged, in fact, from
an interview with me, whilst I was promoting my then
just-published book UFO Study. It was well done and
factual, not exaggerating the story. It merely quoted
from a half-page “progress report” I wrote at this
point for FSR, Military Contact Alleged at Air Base: “At

present it is impossible to say how much of this is fact
and how much fiction generated by the inevitable sto-
ries that are sweeping the community.”

Scene-set for an Encounter:

Rendlesham Forest is a large area of wooded land
about eight miles north east of Ipswich and close to
the coast. It is surrounded by little more than a few
farms. The only habitation of any note is the village of
Woodbridge at the western edge. The USAF bases lie
some three or four miles to the north of the forest.
Earth mystery lovers will no doubt be interested to
know that there are tumulii, and a number of “ley”
place names in the region. Should anybody want to
land, the woods could be ideal. There are spots open
enough for this to occur, while the woods themselves
would afford cover. And the very desolate surround-
ings would certainly reduce the number of potential
witnesses to a minimum.

The discovery of substance behind the shadow

Clearly crucial to an understanding of what, if any-
thing, really happened, is the local follow up by
Brenda Butler and Dot Street. Brenda prepared a
multi-page report on their work in March 1981. She
circulated a few copies, and I received one. It is some-
what confusing in that it suffers from being a personal
description with no real chronology. None of the
half-dozen witnesses cited in it are named, or even
given any status other than Witness 1, 2 or 3 etc. I
have talked with both Brenda and Dot in an effort to
clarify what the report implies and I think I have this
clear. What follows is a summary, with additional data
that Brenda ventured to me during a January 1982
discussion.

It now transpires that Brenda discovered the inci-
dent within days of its having taken place, a month
before the other rumours surfaced. Her informant was
a personal friend at the USAF base, an officer who has
confided UFO information to her before. On this occa-
sion she was told not to discuss the matter publicly.
Afraid, both for his sake, and because she wanted to
get more inside information from him in future, she
complied with his request. She only began to follow
up when other sources informed her of the incident,
and later when the existence of the Begg and Olner
rumours became known

The primary witness (the officer) claims that this is
not the first incident of this magnitude which has hap-
pened in the vicinity of the base, although this was the
most impressive as it involved contact. His story, told
initially and confirmed on follow-up in February
1981, is as follows:

On December 30, 1980, a farmer in the vicinity of
the forest called the base to advise them that he had
just seen an aircraft crash into the Forest. The base



police went out to check on the claim and came back
saying: “there’s a UFO in the woods!” (This would be
at an unspecified time, but at night. Someone from the
base newspaper heard of this, and went to the scene
armed with still and movie cameras, and in fact is said
to have filmed the object on the ground! The base
commander, meanwhile, ordered a high-level team to
visit the site, involving himself, the chief of security
police, and several other high-ranking officers. The
base commander expressly forbade any of the group
to take weapons with them. At the site the object was
on the ground apparently damaged on the outside.
Entities (three of them, about 3 feet tall, and in silvery
suits) were suspended in mid air beside the craft
within shafts of light. They were repairing their da-
maged craft. The base commander confiscated all the
cameras from the Base press sources, and demanded a
total news blackout. He himself (alone) spoke with the
aliens whilst they worked. The object was on the
ground for four hours before climbing to hover briefly
over treetops and then shoot away at great speed.
Next day an Al0 aircraft was sent over the forest
looking for radiation traces. They found some. Mean-
while all personnel on the base were issued with strict
instructions not to discuss the affair publicly. This in-
formant spoke to Brenda only on strictly confidential
terms and even then refused to answer two specific
questions viz: the precise shape of the landed craft,
and the subjects discussed in conversation with the
aliens.

Related anomalies?

At about this time, while Brenda was the only ufolo-
gist to know of this affair, a number of possibly related
anomalies came to her notice which might well be of
some interest. The first stemmed from a discussion she
had with a man (not military) who is sometimes called
into the base to do major electrical repairs. He, not
knowing about the crash rumours, told the following
tale, from supposedly the same time span, and possibly
the same date:

~ The man was called to the base because the lights
on the runway had all gone out . .. mysteriously. He
was not told what had caused this . .. indeed the base
refused to tell him! The weather was very cold and it
was night. He was led to the runway to fix them,
which he did, under an armed guard of six men. It was
this he found most odd, because he has never been so
treated on other visits to the base.

Brenda also discovered through her local infor-
mation net — which does seem impressive — that
forestry workers in Rendlesham had discovered a sec-
tion of forest with the tops of trees scorched. They had
reported this to the Air Base, and were told to keep it
quiet although, presumably, they were not informed
why.

On February 12, 1981, mystery bangs were alle-

gedly heard in the area of the forest. One forestry
worker tried to find out what these were, and was ad-
vised they were due to unexploded bombs being ex-
ploded on Orford Island — off the coast a few miles
away. Brenda checked with the police but they did not
confirm this explanation. Indeed they had none to of-
fer. Three bangs were apparently heard at intervals of
20 minutes. This informant was asked if he knew any-
thing about an object crashing into the woods. He
agreed he did, but had been informed it was an air-
craft. Since there had been no mention of this in the
press he found it hard to believe.

An investigation is mounted

In view of the coalescing rumours that something
had happened (a few other sources had advised her of
an “aircrash”) Brenda decided to act. She called Dot
Street and gave her some information. They took the
bull by the horns, called the base commander, and
made an appointment to see him! This was at 4.00pm
on February 18, seven weeks after the “crash”. They
asked the commander specific questions but he would
not answer them. In return he queried them on their
UFO knowledge. Ultimately they were told to contact
the Ministry of Defence as all the Base UFO reports
— certainly implying they had some — went to the
Ministry. (It does seem to me that some unit in the
USA must have been informed too.) Incidentally the
MOD were contacted. They told Brenda that they
did not know anything of such an incident” and ad-
vised her to contact the base commander!

According to the primary witness (the officer) this
visit seems to have had some repercussions. The com-
mander is said to have called a meeting of his officers
in an effort to discover who had leaked the story. The
“culprit” was not discovered, but one respected officer
was allegedly shipped straight back to the USA. It is
claimed that this was because suspicion fell on him
that he was an “informant to ufologists.” In view of
these after-effects Brenda’s decision not to disclose the
names, or in some cases the nature of her information
sources, was greatly strengthened.

From their meeting with the base commander,
when they formed the distinct impression that he
knew very well what they had been talking about, the
two women went to the Forest. It was now glowlng
dark, and they only knew the alleged landing area in a
vague sense, but drove to where they thought it was.
The forest is about three miles from the base, and they
drove into it and along towards a clearing, close to the
site. At this point Brenda goes on to describe a curious
incident which may suffer from personalised in-
terpretations and over imagination. Dot Street, how-
ever, confirms it did occur.

It seems the car suddenly began to vibrate. It accel-
erated, reaching 60/70 mph, and was quite out of con-
trol so far as Brenda, the driver, was concerned. Dot



was scared, and believing Brenda was doing it on pur-
pose to frighten her, told her to stop. In the back seat
was Brenda’s eight-year-old Alsatian. It was whimper-
ing and leaping about madly. After about half a mile
the car suddenly stopped and the dog calmed down.
The women were scared. (I was to discover by a curi-
ous synchronous coincidence — which is quite an-
other story — that Brenda’s dog has had a heart con-
dition since birth and does suffer heart attacks period-
ically . . . these cause the dog to jump around until
given medication. This may or may not be relevant,
but should be mentioned as it is not in their report.)

While Brenda checked the car engine — finding
nothing wrong with it — Dot saw a house on the edge
of the woods, and went off to see if it was occupied.
Brenda was none too keen on being left alone in the
gathering gloom, and so tried to restart the car. It
worked perfectly. She drove off after her colleague. At
the house Dot was talking with two elderly gentlemen,
and Brenda joined in the questioning.

These two men said there had been a great deal of
military activity in the woods during the previous
month or so. Their house lights had also flashed on
and off at times and TV reception was poorer than
normal. They knew nothing of a UFO or “crash”.

They drove out of the forest the way they had come.
They had had quite a debate as to whether they
should risk this. They found an empty house, and met
a man in a white car who thought . .. we were doing
a check of animals dying in the woods” which, appar-
ently, is not as peculiar as it might sound, as most ma-
jor woodlands have such periodic checks. On the way
out the car began to vibrate, and the oil and ignition
lights flashed on and off. It also skidded. Whilst the
women clearly think this might be important, I am
forced to wonder if an old car, on a rough track in
winter, might not have a loose connection shaken
about by the terrain? Not that I know much about
cars!

A flood of witnesses

By now, thoroughly intrigued, the investigators did
all they could to seek out the truth. In doing so they
found several other “nameless” persons who ventured
what they knew. In the main this complied with previ-
ous stories, and the Begg and Oliver rumours. Some
features differed from the allegedly first-hand story,
given to Brenda soon after the event, and it must be
realised that these witnesses are passing on what they
heard rather than what they saw. Some of the “detail”
may thus be seen as icing sprinkled on to the cake by
constant retelling and imagination. Also bear in mind
that some of these people did not request anonymity.
Brenda is merely giving it to them in view of the
MOD and security associations of the affair.

Aspects of these three separate tales, coming pri-
marily from airmen at the base, and which agree with

the story so far, are these: Farmer made report; com-
mander and high rank officers went out there; UFO
had crashed, but was repaired; entities were seen; ra-
diation and heat counts next day revealed traces,
marks left on trees at site. Some aspects which differ,
i.e. new elements in these three tales, are: As the UFO
took off the ground beneath it glowed temporarily
with intense heat; the UFO was on three legs sepa-
rated by 30 feet each; the area was cordoned off for
several days, and those enquiring were told that an
aircraft had crashed, although no general news story
to this effect was ever released; about two weeks after
the incident the farmer who had first made the report
told the base his cattle were playing up, and his lights
and TV flashing. He was told merely that there had
been an aircrash. But one of Brenda’s contacts on the
base insists “. . . there were no aircraft up that night.”

It would seem from this that we must treat this lat-
ter batch of details, save the air-crash story which ap-
pears consistent, as rather more insubstantiated, and
possibly fantasy. There does, however, seem to be a
core aspect to the story. Note that the “EM effects on
the jeep” feature, which came via the officers who took
the radar tape, is not confirmed in any of the stories
from the base.

A return to the woods

Brenda and Dot went back to Rendlesham Forest to
check out the exact landing site, which had now been
confirmed by one of the other base contacts. It was
very close to where they had gone, by “accident”, and
where, allegedly, the car effects took place. The site
was in a “restricted area” and it seems that it might be
land owned by the base. They actually passed a sign
which read: ENTRY ONLY BY PERMISSION OF THE BASE
COMMANDER, BENTWATERS. However, they passed this
to approach the Forestry Commission Office, and they
discussed the case with two forestry officers who were
there. They knew some details, but did not seem ac-
quainted with «ll the features of the primary rumour.
They added, from the subsidiary rumours, the bit
about the farmer’s cattle acting up, plus comment that
the UFO was very brightly lit, and had been erratic
on take-off. They were given permission to go to the
site, but the area was under snow and they decided to
put this off for a while. What they did do was to go in
search of the farmer.

At the first smallholding, about half a mile from the
forest, the farmer and his wife denied seeing anything,
but said they had heard a UFO had come down on
Woodbridge land. They also told them that two men
had visited them, soon after the incident, looking for
the farmer who had reported the event. The farmer’s
wife, incidentally, said there was only one man. The
two forestry officials had previously told Brenda and
Dot that one man had been asking them questions
while searching for the farmer just two days after the



“crash” on New Year’s Day 1981. They had no idea
who he was. The farmer and his wife said they told the
man — it could have been men — they presumed it
was an aircraft that had come down. The man never
returned . . . and guess what? He was dressed in a
black suit!

The investigators found the farmer. He refused to
talk to them. As they drove off he “eyed the car
closely.”

Through other sources, the ufologists followed up
several reports of LITS seen in the Leiston area be-
tween December 27 and 30. One man in a pub told
them he had seen a bright light one night during this
period over Rendlesham Forest. He presumed it was
an aircraft, but was slightly puzzled why it stayed in
one spot for 20 minutes.

Ipswich and Woodbridge police were both con-
tacted. Brenda says: “they definitely knew something,”
but shunted her back and forth with “you’ll have to
talk to the Base Commander . . . we can’t tell you any-
thing.” They even tried to get the local newspaper in-
terested. The Leiston office called the HQ in Ipswich
with Brenda listening. They did not react as they nor-
mally do in such circumstances, telling the local re-
porter to check it out . .. they said: “Leave it!” Brenda
and Dot pelieve that the press may have been pre-
vented from following the case by application of pres-
sure from official sources.

Brenda and Dot’s second visit to the Forest was on
February 24, 1981. On March 9 they called the For-
estry Commission again and spoke to one of the two
officers they had met earlier. He was abrupt and de-
nied all knowledge of the incident! Through a contact
in the Forestry service the women tried to get to the
site, but they were told that “for some strange reason”
this was not possible. The area in question had sud-
denly been burnt to the ground for no obvious reason.
This was on February 26 . . . two days after their visit
to the Forestry Commission Offices.

Paul Begg told me in London in October 1981 that
he had run up against a brick wall of denials when he
tried to check things out. Nobody admitted to know-
ing anything. Similarly, Bob Easton, the BUFORA Co-
ordinator for Brenda and Dot’s region, has met a bar-
rage of denials and continual shuntings from person
to person and office to office. He told me: “I think
something genuinely did happen ... but beyond that I
can’t go.” At my request he and Andy Collins are
hopefully going to visit the area to have another try.

What is the explanation?

I now know just how Berlitz and Len Stringfield
(compiler of the original USA crash stories for his
FSR series) must have felt. I am sure that Brenda and
Dot are telling the truth. And I respect their reasons
for maintaining anonymity of witnesses. This is a sen-
sitive issue and the move is a wise one. I hope, how-
ever, these people willl be willing to talk with strictly
vetted persons . .. and I think some of them will.

Did a UFO crash? An honest assessment of this
case suggests, as incredible as it might seem, that
there is at least a good possibility that the essence of
the story is true. The whole thing does gell together
rather well. So far as I can see there is little doubt that
something very curious happened that night, which, for
some reason, officialdom is hushing up. For it all to be
rumour seems most improbable, as too many people
claim to have seen things, and there is a considerable
consistency. And if rumour, why not denounce it . ..
and why obtain the civilian radar tapes? Not that ru-
mours are well-known for turning up on radar
screens!

A cover-story clearly emerged that the crashed ob-
ject was a plane — perhaps thanks to the farmer’s
thinking that was what it must have been? But why
cover up a plane-crash in woodland? And how do you
get this plane out of there afterwards? And why again
take away the radar tapes? The “plane crash” story
would be an effective way of deflecting interest. And
there is a story from one source that the plane which
crashed had some kind of nasty weapon inside —
hence the radiation? But could such a crash be hidden
— presumably to prevent panic or public outcries
against “necessary” military deployments? I have
grave doubts about the ethics of all this, if that really
is the answer. Maybe the UFO story was seeded to
hide the crash. But it seems to be the other way round.
For it was the plane-crash rumour that was spread to
farmers and foresters. The UFO rumour came only to
restricted sources. Realistically a UFO crash does
seem a better explanation.

Brenda Butler is fair in her assessment, with which
I concur: “We must have an open mind. It may have
been a UFO ... or a secret experiment of some sort.”
We are not giving up. Lord Clancarty is looking at the
government angle for us. Lawyer Harry Harris is
probing the legality of this apparent cover-up of some-
thing. Brenda and Dot are plugging away . .. “We in-
tend to find out what really happened. If we do, we'll
let you know.
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BSTRACT: It is pointed out that according to

well-established facts both the so-called Petroza-
vodsk Phenomenon and the more recent sighting of
June 14, 1980, reported from the Soviet Union, were
caused by launchings of Soviet satellites from the nor-
thern Soviet space rocket station close to the town of
Plesetsk. It is to be expected that such light pheno-
mena will add “noise” to Soviet UFO reports, even in
future, because the Soviet press does not publish de-
tailed information on the launchings.

Introduction

In recent years, considerable attention has been
paid to some reports from the Soviet Union, describ-
ing impressive night-time light phenomena in the sky,
witnessed simultaneously by large numbers of people
over large areas of the country, and in some cases also
in the neighbouring country of Finland. Especially, I
refer to two incidents which have been described in
FSR: the Petrozavodsk Phenomenon of September 20,
1977,' and the sighting of June 14, 1980.> In fact,
there is no reason to suppose that either of these
sightings is due to anything more fantastic than the
launching of Soviet satellites. The fact that some So-
viet ufologists seem to have erroneously emphasised
the importance of these reports must indicate the lim-
ited flow of information in the Soviet Union concern-
ing the launches.

It may sound strange that Soviet UFO proponents,
among them scientists, are so ignorant of the great ac-
tivity of the northern Soviet space rocket centre about
300 kms south of Arkhangelsk. However, we should
remember that the existence of this cosmodrome, from
which more than half of the world’s satellites have
been launched in recent years (one or two per week),
has not been publicly discussed in the Soviet Union,
although its activities have been closely followed by
western experts since its operation was started in
1966. Because of the close-by town of Plesetsk, this
space centre is usually referred to in the West as
Plesetsk.

Well, the reader may reply, how can we be sure that
these two incidents really were due to launches from

Plesetsk? In fact, casual reading of the published eye-
witness accounts may not immediately bring such an
explanation into mind, especially if one does not
know how impressive the sight of an ascending rocket
may be (also, such accounts necessarily contain inac-
curacies and unintentional distorsions). I will first dis-
cuss in some detail the Petrozavodsk phenomenon. It
should be noted that soon after the incident Hynek’s
International UFO Reporter offered the launch of a So-
viet satellite as an explanation,® following the reason-
able identification proposed by J. Oberg in ref. 4.

The Petrozavodsk phenomenon:
the launch of Cosmos 955

I will list some arguments in favour of the rocket
explanation:

1. The Petrozavodsk phenomenon was observed all
over Finland, even in the western parts, simultane-
ously with observations in the Baltic and Karelia. This
proves its high altitude, and is compatible with a
rocket.

2. Its outlook as observed here, and direction of move-
ment, were exactly as expected from a rocket launch
from Plesetsk — in good weather these launches have
been many times observed from Finland.

3. What is important is that the phenomenon exactly
coincided in time with the launch of the Cosmos 955
satellite from Plesetsk, as shown by western analyses.*
It should be noted that Pravda publishes short notices
of Soviet satellite launches within one or two days of
the launch. This was the case also with Cosmos 955.
However, Pravda usually gives only the name of the
satellite, the date of the launch and some technical de-
tails, but omits the exact time of the launch and the
name and location of the cosmodrome (if it is Ple-
setsk). Because of this latter fact, it is understandable
that Soviet people may be confused as to the real na-
ture of the related light phenomena.

4. One can safely conclude that the Petrozavodsk
phenomenon was due to the exhaust flames and gases
from the rocket which took Cosmos 955 into orbit.
However, one may ask, what about the curious details



of the reports, e.g. claims concerning low-flying glows,
“rays” extending down to the ground etc. In fact,
Cruikshank and Swift,> in their analysis of the inci-
dent, emphasised such details.

As regards the “low-flying glows,” such reports
probably are due to the well-known fact that it is diffi-
cult to estimate distances of unfamiliar phenomena,
for example, close to Turku, a Finnish town in the
south-western part of the country, two men came to
believe that the Petrozavodsk phenomenon had a di-
ameter of 10 metres and was situated only 300 metres
from these witnesses (actually the distance was many
hundreds of kilometres!). They thought it was ap-
proaching them, got frightened, and drove away.®
Similarly, when an Estonian journalist, Jyri Lina, de-
scribes the Petrozavodsk phenomenon in his book
“On the UFO Research in the Soviet Union” (pu-
blished in Finnish only),” the colourful collection of
statements from the witnesses is characterised by
many analogous and necessarily quite unreliable esti-
mates.

As regards the “rays” or “golden streams of light”
(typical formations of exhaust gases), these were ob-
served (and photographed) also by Finnish witnesses,
hundreds of kilometres from Petrozavodsk. These
were described using phrases similar to those used by
witnesses in Petrozavodsk. Hence, the (incorrect) im-
pression of rays extending locally down to the ground
in Petrozavodsk is not so surprising.

When discussing such peculiar details, Cruikshank
and Swift> suggest that “we have a kind of paradox
where the last few details of the sighting transformed
it from an apparently identifiable event into one that
appears to remain unidentified.” [ cannot see here any
serious paradox. The quite questionable significance
of these details which probably are due to poor ob-
serving (low-flying glows, rays extending down to the
ground) or are totally unrelated to the light pheno-
menon (holes in the window glass) cannot be reason-
ably compared with the well-established evidence that
the primary phenomenon was a rocket launch.

Another kind of confusion arises if the statements
in newspapers as regards the places of observation are
interpreted as conveying the track of flight of the
phenomenon. For example, in FSR 25, No. 1, p. 25,
TASS was quoted as saying that “At 3.00 am. a UFO,
in the shape of a fiery ball, appeared at a great height
in the sky over Helsinki. After hanging for a few mi-
nutes over the centre of the City, it then flew off at
high speed towards the East.” Now, I can assure the
reader that this phenomenon was not observed over
the centre of Helsinki, but it was positioned rather low
over the eastern horizon, just like the exhaust flames
from a Plesetsk rocket should be. The time of observa-
tion given, 3.00 a.m,, refers to the Finnish official time,
one hour behind the Soviet (Moscow) time. Thus,
when the report continues that “at 4.00 a.m. there was

a UFO over Petrozavodsk,” it refers to exactly the
same time of observation and the same event.

The sighting of June 14, 1980:
the launch of Cosmos 1188

When I read the description of the phenomenon
which was observed from Moscow and surrounding
cities,? it immediately struck me that this might be an-
other launch from Plesetsk. The statement by S. Boz-
hich was especially revealing: “Indeed, this one was
extraordinarily similar to the one that flew over Pe-
trozavodsk.” It remained to be checked whether this
observation coincided with any of the known
launches. And in fact, from the monthly catalogue of
satellite launches published by the British journal
Spaceflight? it was found that exactly at the time of
sighting (11h 50min p.m. Soviet official time) the sat-
ellite Cosmos 1188 was launched from Plesetsk, and a
short announcement was again to be read in Pravda
(June 17, 1980). The description of the phenomenon,
as given by FSR, very well fits with a rocket launch,
and the drawings based on photos are quite similar to
the appearance of an ascending rocket (as e.g. ob-
served and photographed a few times in Finland).
Cosmos 1188 went into an orbit with the inclination
angle of 63 degrees, which means that it was launched
quite closely in the eastern direction. This general
movement to the East can be discerned in the descrip-
tion given by FSR, though the apparent track of the
object on the map given in page 14 of ref. 2 cannot be
its true track relative to the ground (which was much
more north of Moscow; here I refer to what I said con-
cerning the Petrozavodsk phenomenon “over”
Helsinki).

Two additional reports from Dr Zigel’s files are
presented as indicating that small craft were released
from the “Glavnyy Ob’eckt” and landed on the streets
of Moscow. However, there does not seem to be any
evidence which links these reports with the primary
light phenomenon. As in the case of the Petrozavodsk
phenomenon, these details do not in the least affect
the conclusion that the phenomenon of June 14, 1980,
was most probably due to the launch of Cosmos 1188.

Concluding remarks

It is to be hoped that the present discussion en-
hances healthy criticism as regards the nature of UFO
reports received from the Soviet Union. Because of
the limited information concerning the launches of
satellites, ordinary people and even newspapermen
and scientists in the Soviet Union are prone to be
confused as to the origin of the related light pheno-
mena. This noise factor should be kept in mind when
considering Soviet UFO reports, especially those
which have been simultaneously observed over large
arcas. It should be noted that the most interesting



UFO observations concern quite local incidents, with
a small number of witnesses, as emphasised e.g. by J.
A. Hynek.? In general, one should be cautious of
night-time light phenomena simultaneously observed
over large areas, because these usually are due to
either astronomical phenomena or our own space-
technology.

Acknowledgement: I would like to thank Dr H. Oja
from the Observatory and Astrophysics Laboratory of
University of Helsinki, who kindly helped me to lo-
cate information concerning Cosmos 1188.
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MORE ON THE AZORES LANDING OF

SEPTEMBER 1954
Gordon Creighton

IN my letter to the Editor in FSR Volume 27, No. 4
(page 23), 1 gave some details of the Azores Inci-
dent to which our lady correspondent had referred in
her report of the gigantic “cigar” that she saw from an
aircraft while crossing the Atlantic. As readers will re-
call, she said that the incident took place on Septem-
ber 20, 1954, at Santa Maria Airport in the Azores,
and that it was the case listed as No. 14 in Dr. Jacques
Vallée’s study, “The Pattern Behind the UFO Land-
ings,” which forms part of The Humanoids, edited by
Charles Bowen and first issued in 1966.

Our friend and reader Sr. Joaquim Fernandes of
Oporto (Northern Portugal), who is himself a profes-
sional journalist on the important newspaper Jornal

de Noticias, and also the Director of the review Insélito
and a member of the “OURANOS” UGEPI UFO INVESTI-
GATION GROUP, has now written to me a very interest-
ing letter enclosing the full text of the original press
report of November 21, 1954, as it appeared in the
Azores newspaper Ocorrencia. Readers will undoubt-
edly be interested to see this, so I give below my
translation of the complete Portuguese text. Our
thanks for this go not only to Senhor Joaquim Fer-
nandes, but also to Senhor Teixeira Pombo and his
colleagues of the Azores Branch of CEAFI (Centre for
the Study of Astronomy and of Unwonted Phenomena),
of Apartado 3, Aeroporto de Santa Maria, Azores, who
were good enough to send the text to Sr. Joaquim Fer-
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nandes. Incidentally Sr. Pombo mentions in his letter
that there used to be on file a sketch of the UFO,
made presumably by the witness, but that “not for the
first time, we find that, in some mysterious fashion,
the sketch has now ‘disappeared’!”

The report (in Ocorrencia, Santa Maria de Acores,
November 21, 1954)
Reporter: Airport Guard No. 14, Vitorino
Lourenco Monteiro.
Subject: Sighting of an unknown aircraft.

I beg to inform you that, at 2240 hours today, when
I was on duty in the Central Control Post of this Air-
port, the lights being turned off, I observed a fairly
bright yellow light travelling silently and at a moder-
ate speed through the air from North to South over
this Island. Then, at a certain point, it started to de-
scend vertically right by where I was, and came to rest
on the ground.

I perceived at once that it was an elliptically shaped
machine of unknown origin. It was about three metres
long and about 1!'/2 metres high. It was of a bluish
colour, and on the top of it it had what looked like two
transmitter aerials. No landing gear was to be seen.
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On the central, upper part there was an opening de-
void of any cover, through which its single occupant
suddenly emerged.

I switched on the light inside the Control Post, and
was able to see that this individual was wearing a uni-
form, with a dark-coloured helmet, a dark yellow over-
all, and trousers of the same colour, secured with a
dark belt, and long yellow boots with zippers at the
side. He was of normal height and looked about 35
years old, with fair hair, slight beard, and no moust-
ache.

Emerging from the machine he quickly stepped for-
ward to contact me, greeting me correctly with a
handshake and a couple of slaps on the back, and ut-
tering words that I was unable to understand, being in
a language different from ours, and not resembling
either English or French. The strange occurrence left
me glued to the spot and puzzled — indeed all the
more so, as the craft had meanwhile taken off again
and was heading away to the south, without having
refuelled. In a flash it was gone and out of sight, so it
had been impossible for me to take any sort of action.

The sound made by the craft was like the sound
made by wind against telephone wires.

A few moments later, up came José Batista, aged 45,
married, a native of this Island, and residing at
Atabta, Ribeira Grande, Vila do Porto, here at Santa
Maria. He asked me what that light was that had just
taken off in a southerly direction. He said he had seen
it from a distance that he estimated to be about 400
metres.

Additional note from Sr. Teixeira Pombo of CEAFI,
Santa Maria, about the second witness

On May 2, 1977, the Second eyewitness, José
Batista, was contacted (reference the landing case of
November 21, 1954, observed by the Airport Guard
Vitorino Lourengo Monteiro).

This man is now about 70 vears old, and in poor
health. He no longer remembers the mmdcnt very
well, but in fact he was quite some distance from the
spot at the moment when the landing occurred. He
confirmed that it took place at about 2300 hours. He
said he saw a very bright light over in the direction of
the Police Control Post at the Airport. He himself was
at that moment at the spot known as Casal, about 400
metres distant from the Control Post. He had the im-
pression that the light subsequently moved off to-
wards the Mobil Oil Company’s oil depots, over to-
wards the sea.

He went to the Police Control Post and asked the
guard what the light was, and was told that it might
possibly have been a flying saucer, and that its pilot
had tried to talk to the guard and had then re-entered
his machine and vanished rapidly.
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